
 

CITY OF ALBION PLANNING COMMISSION 
                        REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2017 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 
 
I.  Call To Order (Reminder: turn off cell phones) 
 
II.  Roll Call of the Commission 
 
III.  Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes –  
 A.  January 18, 2017    
 
IV.  Correspondence 
 
V.  Public Hearing-Community Garden Applications 
   
VI. Order of Business 

       A. Election of Officers (Chair, Vice Chair) 
B. Approve Application for Community Garden located at 401 and 403 

W. Center Street 
C. Approve Application for Community Garden located at 213 S. Albion 

St and 618 W. Erie Street 
D. Update on Redevelopment Ready Community 
E. Review Comprehensive Plan 
F. Excuse Absent Commissioners 

 
VI. Citizen Comments (Persons addressing the Planning Commission shall limit  
       their comments to no more than 5 minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 
 
VII.  Adjournment 
 PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 
1) The Planning Commission Chair opens the hearing 
2) Chair summarized the process 
3) Staff presents report on applicant’s request 
4) Chair reads any correspondence into the record 
5) Public speaking portion of hearing 

• Individuals in support 
• Opposition speakers 
• Questions & rebuttal (directed through the Chair) 
• Public speaking portion of hearing closed 

6) Finding of facts 
7) Board begins deliberations 
8) Motion is made 
9) Roll call vote taken 

 

 



Page 1 of 4                       jdomingo/planning commission minutes 01-18-17 
 

Planning Commission 
January 18, 2017 

 
 
I. Call To Order 
 

The January 18, 2017 Planning Commission meeting was called to order at 7:00 
p.m. by Chairperson Strander and a quorum declared. 
 
 

II. Roll Call of the Commission 
 

S Brown, T Pitt, G Strander, G Strand, S Kipp 
 
Staff Present:  S Mitchell, City Manager, J Domingo, City Clerk and J Tracy, 
Director Building, Planning & Code Enforcement 
 
Absent: G Brown 
 

III. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes-December 20, 2016 
 
 T Pitt asked to have the following change to the December 20, 2016 minutes: 
 

The approval of the Special Use Request for Albion Malleable Brewing Company 
should be moved to item VI-(A) Formal Consideration of Special Use Permit 
(Case # 2016-061) for proposed Micro Brewery, Small Wine Maker and Open 
Front Structure for 416 (aka 420) South Superior Street. Albion Malleable 
Brewing Company. 

 
 T Pitt moved, S Kipp supported, CARRIED, to approve the December 20, 
2016 Planning Commission minutes with the above change. (Voice Vote) 
 

IV. Correspondence – City Manager Mitchell stated The Mayor and City Council has 
arranged for the Michigan Municipal League (MML) to provide training to assist 
everyone in understanding their responsibilities and rules impacting public 
meetings. The training will be held on Saturday, February 4th from 11am-3pm at 
the Ludington Center, 101 N. Superior Street.   

 
V.       Order of Business 
 

A. Discussion-Review of Community Garden Ordinance 
 

John Tracy, Director Building, Planning & Code Enforcement stated the City 
is potentially looking at having two (2) or three (3) community gardens this 



Page 2 of 4                       jdomingo/planning commission minutes 01-18-17 
 

year.  In 2011, Ordinance # 2011-01 was passed establishing community 
gardens.  He would like the Planning Commission be aware of how the 
ordinance is written and any amendments that may be need to be made. 
Applications are filed with the City Clerk who in turn forwards to the Planning 
Commission for review and/or approval. We currently do not have any 
community garden applications on file. 
 
Director Tracy stated considerations of the ordinances may be as follows: 

• Ordinance does not cover how large a hoop house may be and how 
much area they can cover. The hoop houses would be in residential 
areas.  A hoop house can be made of several different types of 
materials and is covered.  A green house is typically the same as a 
hoop house. 

• Community Gardens may cover several parcels.   
• No setback for signs 

 
Recommendations from Director Tracy are as follows: 
 

• Make amendments of ordinance as soon as possible to avoid residents 
having to wait for an amendment to be passed and decrease the 
amount of time of having license approved. 

• Define how much of an area a hoop house can cover 
• Specifications for hoop houses such as appearance/safety 
• Each parcel should apply for and receive a community garden license.  

This would alleviate an issue if a parcel was sold. 
 

Questions/Concerns from the Planning Commission: 
• Is it easier to leave the ordinance as it and then go back and change it if 

the need arises? 
• Would like to see hoop houses criteria be to grow produce. 
• Establish a growing season. The current language is very generic. 
• Establish criteria of size and use of hoop houses. 

 
The Commission would like Director Tracy to check on community garden 
ordinances from other communities and bring specific suggestions for 
changes to our ordinance at the next Planning Commission meeting.  

 
B. Update on Redevelopment Ready Community 
 

City Manager Mitchell asked if any of the Planning Commission would be 
interested in participating in a work group for the Redevelopment Ready 
Community to ensure all components are being handled.  The committee will 
consist of John Tracy, Building, Planning & Code Enforcement Director; 
Danielle Nelson, Special Projects Manager; AmeriCorps Vista and Amy 
Deprez, EDC Director. 
 



Page 3 of 4                       jdomingo/planning commission minutes 01-18-17 
 

Commissioner G Strand volunteered for the Redevelopment Ready 
Community work group. 

 
C. Review Comprehensive Plan 
 

Chair G Strander stated he has asked that a review of the Comprehensive 
Plan be added as a monthly agenda item. 

 
City Manager Mitchell stated Danielle Nelson, Special Projects Manager is 
working on a chart that will show a more visual progress of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The next area of the Comprehensive Plan that will be 
worked on is zoning and key areas for future housing developments. 
 
Chair G Strand stated we have the capital improvement plan and zoning that 
are set as a one year goal that may want to be looked into. 

 
D. Miscellaneous-Boards & Commission Training-Feb 4th, 2017 11am-3pm 
 

This item was discussed under (IV) Correspondence. 
 
E. Excuse Absent Commissioners 

 
S Brown moved, G Strand supported, CARRIED, to excuse 
Commissioner G Brown. (Voice Vote) 
 

VI. Citizen Comments  
 
 No citizen comments were received. 
 
 Commissioner comments were as follows: 
 

S. Brown-Developers are looking at properties all over Michigan and he would 
like to see Albion ready if an offer arrives. He also volunteered to help with 
demolition of Darlymple School. 

 
G Strand-would like to see something done in the Comprehensive Plan for 
Rosalyn Jones. 

 
J Tracy, Director Building, Planning & Code Enforcement, stated the new 
Treasurer for Calhoun County is moving in the same direction as the previous 
Treasurer and are still maintaining a focus on Albion. 

 
City Manager Mitchell stated the City received $125,000 from the Cronin 
Foundation toward the demolition of Dalrymple School; Gina’s Pizza and Deli will 
be opening soon at their new location on Clinton Street; Edward Jones is moving 
to 201 N. Clinton Street; the Council approved going to a single hauler for refuse 



Page 4 of 4                       jdomingo/planning commission minutes 01-18-17 
 

and a new sandwich shop will be opening at the former location of Gina’s on 
Michigan Avenue. 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 
S Brown moved, T Pitt supported, CARRIED, to adjourn the meeting. 
Meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

 
 
 

Recorded By:  Jill Domingo, City Clerk 



Notice of public hearing before the Albion Planning 
Commission to request approval of application submitted 

for Community Gardens in residential districts. 
 

Wednesday, February 22, 2017 at 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall – Council Chambers on Upper Level 

112 W. Cass Street, Albion, Michigan 49224 
 

Please take notice: The City of Albion Planning Commission will meet as noticed above 
to review and consider approval of application for Community Gardens as required under  
City of Albion Zoning Ordinance #2011-01, Sec. 30-500. Definition; Sec. 30-501. General 
Provisions, Community Gardens. 

 
Applicant: Albion Community Gardens Inc.  
Case # 2017-005: Community Garden proposed to be located at:  
213 S. Albion Street, Parcel # 13-51-015-104-00 
618 W. Erie Street, Parcel # 13-51-015-105-00  
Applicant request: approval for proposed Community Garden as submitted. 
Property owner of record: Calhoun County Land Bank Authority.  

 
Applicant: Albion Community Gardens Inc.  
Case # 2017-006: Community Garden proposed to be located at: 
401 W. Center Street, Parcel # 13-51-013-040-00 
403 W. Center Street, Parcel # 13-51-013-041-00 
Applicant request: approval for proposed Community Garden as submitted. 
Property owner of record: Calhoun County Land Bank Authority.  

 
To comply with the American Disabilities Act. (ADA), any citizen requiring accommodations to attend 
this meeting/function, and or obtain this notice in alternative formats, please contact the City Manager’s 
office at (517) 629-5535 at least five (5) business days prior to the meeting/function. Copies of 
information on the proposed community gardens are available in the City Manager’s office Monday-
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.… Written comments or suggestions regarding this matter are also 
welcome and should be directed to the City Clerk’s office at City Hall, by no later than 5:00 P.M., on 
February 22, 2017.  
 



 

Planning Commission 

February 22, 2017 

 

Case: #2017-005 

Location: 213 S. Albion St. & 618 W. Erie St. 

P.N.: 13-51-015-104-00 & 13-51-015-105-00 

Zoned: R-2-B One-two family residence district 

Property owner of record: Calhoun County Land Bank Authority  

Responsible Party/Organization: Albion Community Gardens, Inc.  

Contact Person: Richard Porter / Mary M. Moore 

 

Zoning Ordinance: Chapter 30, Sec. 30-501 (copy attached) 

Required to be submitted with application.  
 

 Application shall be signed by property owner giving permission.  
 Signed  

 

 Application shall be signed by individual and/or representative of the  

Group or organization that will be responsible for community garden.  
 Signed  

 

 A sketch location of all existing and proposed structure.    

 Sketch attached 

o Refer below to City of Section 30-149 Lot area, yard and height requirements 

o Sq. ft. of shed not indicated (300 sq. max.) 
 

 Proposed layout of garden plots, fencing, etc.…     

 Proposed layout attached 
o Temporary fence material type and height not indicated  

 

 Identify available parking areas on or near property.    

 Parking identified 
 

 Identify source of water that will be used for irrigation.   
 Water source indicated (city water). Note: see Chapter 86, Division 4. – Rates and charges 

 

City of Albion Zoning Ordinance 

Section 30-149 Lot area, yard and height requirements. 

 R-2-B 

 Minimum required setback: 

 Front, feet  25 

 One side, feet  10 

 Both sides, feet  20 

 Rear, feet  25 

 

City of Albion  

Planning, Building, Code Enforcement Department 

112 W. Cass Street  

Albion, Michigan 49224 

 

 



 

Case: #2017-006 

Location: 401 W. Center St. & 403 W. Center St. 

P.N.: 13-51-013-040-00 & 13-51-013-041-00 

Zoned: R-2-B One-two family residence district 

Property owner of record: Calhoun County Land Bank Authority  

Responsible Party/Organization: Albion Community Gardens, Inc.  

Contact Person: Richard Porter / Mary M. Moore 

 

Zoning Ordinance: Chapter 30, Sec. 30-501 (copy attached) 

Required to be submitted with application.  
 

 Application shall be signed by property owner giving permission.  
 Signed  

 

 Application shall be signed by individual and/or representative of the  

Group or organization that will be responsible for community garden.  
 Signed  

 

 A sketch location of all existing and proposed structure.    

 Sketch attached 

o Sq. ft. of shed not indicated (300 sq. max.) 
 

 Proposed layout of garden plots, fencing, etc.…     

 Proposed layout attached 
o Refer below to City of Section 30-149 Lot area, yard and height requirements 

o Temporary fence material type and height not indicated  
 

 Identify available parking areas on or near property.    

 Parking identified 
 

 Identify source of water that will be used for irrigation.   
 Water source indicated (city water). Note: see Chapter 86, Division 4. – Rates and charges 

 

City of Albion Zoning Ordinance 

Section 30-149 Lot area, yard and height requirements. 

 R-2-B 

 Minimum required setback: 

 Front, feet  25 

 One side, feet  10 

 Both sides, feet  20 

 Rear, feet  25 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

Section 30-501 

Community Gardens 
 

A. Approval  

1. Residential Zoning Districts. A community garden in a residential district shall be reviewed 

and approved by the Planning Commission. The property owner and/or authorized agent 

shall file an application (provided by the City) with the City Clerk requesting Planning 

Commission approval. 

2. Community and Industrial Zoning Districts. A community garden that is adjacent to property 

in a residential district shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission. All 

others shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or his designated 

representative.   
 

B. Setback. All garden plots and any permitted structure shall meet the setbacks of the zoning 

district. 
 

C. Permitted Structures. Only the following temporary structures will be permitted in a community 

garden:  

1. Greenhouses, storage sheds, planting preparation sheds and hoophouses. 

a. Height. No building or other structure may be greater than fourteen (14) feet in height.  

b. Maximum coverage. The combined area of all buildings (not including principle 

structures), excluding hoophouses, shall not exceed three hundred (300) square feet. 

c. All structures shall be properly maintained. 

d. Hoophouse coverings must be maintained and kept intact. The coverings must be 

removed during non-growing seasons. 

e. Temporary structures shall be removed if the property is no longer to be used for a 

community garden. 

2. Fences. 

a. The installation of a permanent fence shall comply with the City’s fence ordinance.  

b. A temporary fence may be installed during the growing season. The fence shall be 

properly installed and maintained and be constructed of standard fence material. The 

temporary fence shall be removed at the end of the growing season.  

3. Above ground water tanks, or tanks mounted to trailers or skids, provided that no tank shall 

have a capacity greater than one thousand (1,000) gallons. 

4. Benches, picnic tables, trellises, arbors and garden art.  

5. Planting beds raised up to forty-two (42”) inches above grade. 

6. Compost bins and rain barrel systems, which may not be located within the required 

setbacks or within then (10) feet of a property line, whichever is greater. 
 

D. Trash receptacles shall be provided on site and emptied in a timely manner.  
 

E. Parking on site shall only be permitted on an improved driveway/parking area. All other parking 

shall be in legally approved on-street parking areas or nearby off-street parking areas. Parking of 

vehicles in grass or unimproved areas is not permissible.  
 



2 
 

F. Noise. The use or operation of power tools, mechanical equipment or agricultural implements 

used outdoors in community garden area is prohibited between 9 p.m. and 7 a.m.  
 

G. Burning. Open burning of garden materials and associated waste products is prohibited. 
 

H. Composting. On-site composting of garden waste is permissible if proper composting standards 

are followed and if a nuisance is not created for abutting property owners.  
 

I. Operating Standards. 

1. The community garden shall be appropriately cultivated which includes regular weeding and 

maintenance of the garden area.  

2. The area around the community garden shall also be properly maintained and comply with 

the City’s noxious weed, grass and brush ordinance. 
 

J. For residential districts, there shall be no on-site retail sales. Sale of product in other Zoning 

districts shall meet the zoning district requirements for retail sales activity. 
 

K. Signs. Each community garden may have one (1) sign indicating the name of the community 

garden and the contact information of the principal operator. The sign may not exceed six (6) 

square feet in area nor exceed six (6) feet in height. The specific conditions for signage will be 

part of the review and approval of the application for a community garden.  
 

L. Application. An application (provided by the City) requesting approval for a community garden 

shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall include the following information: 

1. The application shall be signed by the property owner giving permission for use of the 

property as a community garden. 

2. The application shall also be signed by the individual and/or representative of the group or 

organization that will be responsible for the community garden.  

3. A sketch plan showing the property location and size with dimensions.  

a. Show location of all existing an proposed structures 

b. Proposed layout of garden plots, fencing, etc.   

c. Identify available parking areas on or near property  

d. Identify source of water that will be used for irrigation 
 

M. Termination. 

1. When the property owner or group or organization responsible for the community garden 

decides to no longer operate a community garden on the property, the property shall be 

brought into compliance with the City’s noxious weed, grass and brush ordinance.  

2. If the individual, group and/or organization responsible for a community garden fails to 

properly maintain the community garden in compliance with requirements of this ordinance 

then the original approving authority (Planning Commission or City Manager) may after 

reasonable notification terminate the approval to operate a community garden. If the 

responsible party fails to correct the deficiency then the City Manager will proceed with 

action under the City’s ordinances.  


































































	0222017 AGENDA Planning Commission.pdf
	1-18-17 Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	Notice of public hearing before the Albion Planning - community garden.pdf
	Planning Commission 02-22-17 Plan. Dept. 02-13-17.pdf
	Section 30-501 Community Gardens.pdf
	401 & 403 W Center St Community Garden Application.pdf
	213 S Albion & 618 W Erie St Community Garden Application.pdf

